PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

Survey #: P.G. #80-21 Building Date: 1890s

Building Name: Friendly School

Location: 10115 01d Fort Road, Friendly, Maryland

Private/Residence/Occupied/Excellent/Inaccessible
Description:

The Friendly school building is a small one-and-one-half-story frame
gable-roofed structure, converted from a one-room schoolhouse into a modern
residence. The entrance is through the central bay of the three-bay north
gable end, which is covered by a modern porch. Above the porch in the
gable end is a diamond-shaped window. The sides of the building are four
bays wide, and the siding is covered with white abestos shingle. There are
two chimneys at the ridge. In recent years, the building was lifted and
placed on a cinder-block foundation. The interior has been completely
altered, leaving scarcely any of the original fabric. Ten-by-ten inch
floor beams, believed to be original, remain in place.

Significance:

A schoolhouse has stood at this location since before the Civil War.
The one-acre lot almost certainly came out of the considerable landholdings
of the Thorne family, members of which served as school trustees throughout
the school's existence. Members of the Taylor family, which also provided
school trustees, note that William F. Taylor helped with a major rebuilding
of the school in the 1890s. This is confirmed by school Commission reports
which indicate that all of the County's original school buildings were
rebuilt during this period. The school at this location was officially
designated as School #5 in District #5 (Piscataway); by the 1890s it came
to be known as Friendly School.

In 1925 the Oxon Hill Consolidated School opened, and took in students
who had formerly attended the Oxon Hill, Fort Foote, Friendly, Silesia and
Fort Washington schools; in January 1926, Friendly School was sold to E. J.
Thorne, and subsequently converted into a residence. Although it has been
considerably altered, its exterior retains much of its structural integ-
rity. It is one of only two surviving schools in Prince George's County
constructed in the 1890's.

Acreage: 1 acre




Survey No. P.G. #80-21

Magi No.1703395604

Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes _ mo

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Friendly School

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 10115 01d Fort Road ___ not for publication
city, town Friendly ___ vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district - public X occupied ____ agriculture —___ museum
X__ building(s) _X_ private ____ unoccupied ___ commercial ___ park
— structure __ both —__work in progress — educational X private residence
—site Public Acquisition Accessible —_ entertainment — religious
—__ object —_in process —_ yes: restricted ____government ___ scientific
— being considered —_yes: unrestricted __ industrial —_ transportation
_Xnot applicable X no —___ military — other:

4- ownel' Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

David Wockley

name

10110 01d Fort Road

street & number telephone no.:

city, town Friendly, state and zip code Maryland

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber #3031
street & number Main Street folio 643
city,town  Upper Marlboro, state  Md. 20772

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

tie Prince George's County Inventory of Historic Sites

1974

date —— federal ____ state _Xcounty — local
B pository for survey records History Division, M-NCPPC
city, town Riverdale, state Md. 20737




7. Description survey No. P.G. #80-21

Condition Check one Check one

_X_ excellent __ deteriorated ____ unaltered ____ original site

___ good ___ruins _X_ altered —__ moved date of move
—_ fair —___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Friendly school building is a small, one- and-one-half-story frame
gable-roofed structure, converted from a one-room schoolhouse into a modern
residence. The entrance is through the central bay of the three-bay north
gable end, which is covered by a modern porch. Above the porch in the
gable end is a diamond-shaped window.

The sides of the building are four bays wide, and the siding is
covered with white asbestos shingle. The cornice is returned at the gable

ends. There are two chimneys at the ridge.

In recent years, the building was Tifted and placed on a cinder-block
foundation. The interior of the building has been completely altered,
leaving none of the original fabric. The ca. 10" by 10" floor beams do
remain, however, and are believed to be original.

It is probable that the south portion of the schoolhouse was added in
one of the several construction phases.



8. Significance Survey No. p.G. #80-21

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ___ community Planning ____landscape architecture ____ religion

— 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —___ science

- 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___ economics — literature — sculpture

—_1600-1699 ___ architecture _X_education — military ____social/

— 1700-1799 ___ art ____engineering — __ music humanitarian

X _1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —_ theater

— 1900~ ____ communications — industry — politics/government  ___ transportation
____invention _X other (specity)

lacate history
Specific dates 1890's Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _A B _C _D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national __state __ 1local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.
A schoolhouse has stood at this location since before the Civil War.

Because the first schoolhouse was constructed before the Board of County
School Commissioners was officially established, however, the original deed
for the school lot has not been discovered. This one-acre school lot
almost certainly came out of the considerable land-holdings of the Thorne
family, and it was to Edgar J. Thorne that the house and Tot were sold in
1926, when the school was closed. Members of the Thorne family served as
school trustees throughout the school's existence. Another family closely
associated with the school is the Taylor famﬂy1 which also provided
trustees for the school throughout its history. Present-day members of
this family, although they believe the building to be original, note that
William F. Taylor (who served as trustee in the 1920's) helped with a major
rebuilding of the school in the 1890's. This is probably the case, since
school commission reports indicate that all of the County's original school
buildings were rebuilt during this period.

After the establishment of the Board of County School Commissioners in
1865, the school at this location was officially designated as School #5 in
District #5 (Piscataway). By the 1890's, it came to be known as the
Friendly School. It served seven grade levels, each class sitting on an
individual bench. The building was warmed by a coal stove. Although the
schoolhouse was expanded several times, it always remained a one-room
structure.

As early as 1922, plans were begun to establish a larger school to
serve the students then attending the Oxon Hill, Fort Foote, Friendly,
Silesia and Fort Washington schools. The Oxon Hi1l Consolidated School
opened in 1925, and in January 1926, the Friendly school and lot were sold
to E. J. Thorne for $331.4. Since that time it has (1Tike so many other
vacated County school buildings) been converted into a residence. Although
it has been considerably altered, it does reflect a long history of educa-
tion in Prince George's County.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.P.G. #80-21

Prince George's County Deeds: #3031:643; 855:189; 838:472; 710:317; and 260:166;
Journal of Board of County School Commissioners/Board of Education (1865-1826)
Interview with owner, February 1984; Public Schools of Prince George's County, 1976.

10. Geographical Data

. 1 acre
Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangie name Quadrangle scaie
UTM References do NOT complete UTM references :
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code
11. Form Prepared By

Susan G. Pearl, Historic Sites Research Coordinator

nameftitie

organization Historic Preservation Commission date  february 1984

<troct & numbey 15tOTY Division, M-NCPPC tegqu‘me 952-3520/779-2011
Riverdale, state Maryland 20737

city or town

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



P.G. #80-21

8. Significance (Continued)

Footnotes

1 Journal of the Board of County School Commissioners, 1865-1921;
Journal of the Board of Education, 1921-1940.

2 public Schools of Prince George's County, Retired Teachers
Association, 1976.

3 Journal of Board of County School Commissioners, 1865-1921; interview
with owner, February 1984,

4 Journal of the Board of Education, 1921-1926; Prince George's County
Deed, #260:166.
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS

170339550
P i *ZC «58(

SERVICE

C OMMON:

AND/OR HISTORIC:

Friendly School

{2, ‘LOCATION

STREET AND NUMBER:

Allentown Road and 0l1ld Fort‘Road (W.

Quadrant)
CITY OR TOWN:
Oxon Hill
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Prince George's
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
(Check One) OWNERSHIP STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
{7 District B Building [ Public Public Acquisition: E Occupied Yes:
3 Site ] Structure |8 Privote {3 In Process {J Unoccupied {3 Restricred
O Object {3 Beth {3 Being Considered (] Preservotion work O Unreswricred
in progress B No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

{3 Scientific

3 Agriculturol [ Government (3 Perk ) {3 Transportotion [ Comments
] Commercial {3 Industriol EX Privote Residence ] Other (Specity)

[ Educotionol [ Military ] Religious -

] Entertainment D Mussum

b5 ONNER OF PROPERTY

SWNER' S NAME:

STREET ANO NUMBER:

CiTY OR TOWN:

STATE:

COURTHOUSE REG!STRY OF Or.EDS ETC:

Prince George's County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN:

Upper Marlboro

STATE

Maryland

Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Dq; #):

EPRESEN

CION IN EXISTIMG SHRYEYS

TITLE OF SURVE :

None

OATE OF SURVEY:

(T} Federal

[ Stote 3 County

[ Locol

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECOROS:

STREET ANO NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN:

STATE:

pogerpm:
fE ﬂ..'ﬁ"ﬁ?w

)




} 7. DESCR1 PTION:

(Check One)
[J Excellient £ Good 3 Foir {7] Detreriorated {7 Ruins {1 Unexposed

8. SIGNIFICANCE -

PERIOD (Check

CONDITION (Check One) (Check One) D 15t
B Altered {7 Unoltered ] Moved &K Original Site -
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE SPECIFIC DATE
AREAS OF SIGN)
. . Abor igir
The house, once the Friendly School House, 1is _ 0 Pr
{3 Hi
now a private residence. The main (north) facade is 0 Agri
. ’ {7 Areh
three bays with a central doorway. Along the side- 01 An
{3 Come
walls are four, double hung sash windows. Under the ] Come
[J Cons

eaves, a wide board serves as a frieze.

STATEMENT OF :




nzmo;:” (C.l;ock One or More ae Appropriete) PG ’ 8(0/ QJ
7T " -2.Coiumbian [ 16th Century [J 18th Century {] 20th Century
(] 15th Century 3 171h Century [ 19th Century
— - SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known)
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More aa Appropriate)
Abor iginal [0 Educotion {3 Politicsl {7} Urbon Planning
O Prehistoric ] Engineering [ Religion/Phi. [T} Other (Specity)
[C] Historic [ industry losophy
O Agricviture {J invention ] Science
[0 Architecture ] Londscope [ Sculpture
] Arr o Architecture [ Seciol/Humon-
[0 Commerce O Literoture itarian
[OJ Communicotions [} Military [ Theoter
{0 Conservotion O Music [0 Tronsportotion
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
—




MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPRICAL REFERENCES

[ GeacrAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LDNGITUDE CODRDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE CODRDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY e} DEFINING THE CENTER PDINT DF A PRDPERTY
R DF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE "~ LDNGITUDE

Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW (-] ’ » o ’ » [o] 0 » o ’ -
NE (-] » LI (-] ] »
SE o . » [-] » »
Sw -] » » o ’ »

APPRDXIMATE ACREAGE DF NDMINATED PRDPERTY:

‘Acreage Justification:

iLIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FDR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE DR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: CDUNTY
STATE: CDUNTY:
STATE: CDUNTY:
STATE: CDUNTY:

‘11 FORM PREPARED B)

NAME AND TITLE:

Christopher Owens, Park Historian

DRGANIZATIDN DATE

MNCPPC 12 Dec 73

STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Silver Spring Marvland

tz' . . .
**jState Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [ State [] Local []

Signature

33§

SNOITLONYLSNI




#3031:643
10 Sept 1964
Deed

#1065:383
30 Sept 1948
Deed

#855:189
23 April 1948
Deed

#838:472
8 July 1946
Deed

#710:317
10 June 1943
Deed

#260:166
29 Jan 1926
Deed

Chain of Title

Friendly School P.G. #80-21

Mack Morton Reid et ux to David Wockley et ux, part
(20,702 square feet) of lot known as Friendly School
property, which grantors acquired by #1065:383.

Marie J. Kessel to Mack Morton Reid et ux, lot in
Piscataway District, Friendly school property on road
from D.C. to Piscataway, 1 acre, which grantor acquired
by #855:189.

Bernhardt L. Mortensen et ux to Marie J. Kessel, 1
acre, Friendly school property, which grantors acquired
by #838:472.

William and Virginia Van Cleaf to Bernhardt Mortensen
et ux, Friendly School property, which grantors
acquired by #710:317.

Florence M. Thorne, widow, as representative of will of
Edgar J. Thorne (WTD #6:21), to William Van Cleaf et ux,
1 acre, Friendly School property which Edgar J. Thorne
acquired by #260:166.

Board of Education of Prince George's County to E.J.
Thorne, Friendly School property, 1 acre, bounded on
the east of the public road, on north and west by the
land of A.B. Thorne, on south by the land of E.J.
Thorne. '
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P.G.#80-21
Friendly School
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
September 1984
North elevation
Neg: Md. Hist.Trust, Annapolis, MD






p.G. #80-21
Friendly School
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
September 1984
Northeast 3/4 elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD






P.G. #80-21
Friendly School
Prince George's County, MD
Susan G. Pearl
September 1984
Northwest 3/4 elevation
Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, MD



v’ 2

& Al 3,
< '3}?» o
e ng,:{//" 'ulg L
i




NAME  FErEnNDeyY SCHoo( MNouse. FG” OVG'R/

LOCATION Ol Fr 4 v Locsnwd A SieesiA Ao //‘é/éd/w}/)
FACADE ~ ww/
PHOTO TAKEN /2//2/73 H.0wrel—



W
v

] o
5 o g
= o A+ ooy i SR
5% »

o

Fw 13

SRR




P .So-|
NAME AC#ndey SCtroc SousE

LOCATION @d A7 &L w locsnd (g, Suesed Ml ( Aeréwoey)
FACADE £
PHOTO TAKEN  /2/rz/73 ft.owyee



